
__________________________________________________________ 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING PACKET
__________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Board Chair –Tom Herrin, Secretary – Wes McMahan,  

Commissioner – Craig Coppock, Commissioner-Van Anderson & 
Commissioner-Chris Schumaker 

April 30, 2025 @ 3:30 PM 
Conference Room 1 & 2 or Join Teams Meeting: 

Meeting ID: 278 815 328 169 
Passcode: 9uo7gX9H 

Dial: +1.360.302.2717 
Phone Conference ID: 705 103 053# 

__________________________________________________________

Pg 1 Board Packet



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Agenda  

Executive Session 

Department Spotlight 

Board Committee Reports 

Consent Agenda 

Old Business 

New Business 

Superintendent 

Pg 2 Board Packet



LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
REGULAR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

April 30, 2025 at 3:30 p.m. 
Conference Room 1 & 2 or via TEAMS 

Meeting ID: 278 815 328 169 
Passcode: 9uo7gX9H 
Dial: +1.360.302.2717 

Phone Conference ID: 705 103 053# 

Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

Vision Statement 
To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 

AGENDA PAGE TIME 
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Excused/Unexcused Absences 
Reading of the Mission & Vision Statement 
Approval or Amendment of Agenda 
Conflicts of Interest  

3:30 pm 

Comments and Remarks 
• Commissioners
• Audience

3:35 pm 

Executive Session- RCW 70.41.200 
• Medical Privileging-Chief of Staff Dr. Don Allison & Medical Staff Coordinator Barb

Goble, Medical Staff Support Specialist Jill Elizaga
6 3:40 pm 

Department Spotlight 
• Laboratory-Laboratory Manager Janice Pendergast, COSO Julie Taylor 8 

3:45 pm 

Board Committee Reports 
• Hospital Foundation Report-Committee Chair-Board Chair Herrin/Foundation Manager

Jessica Scogin
16 4:00 pm 

• Finance Committee Report- Committee Chair-Commissioner Anderson 18 4:05 pm 
Consent Agenda (Action) 

• Approval of Minutes:
o March 26, 2025, Regular Board Meeting
o April 14, 2025 Special Board Meeting
o April 23, 2025, Finance Committee Meeting

27 
34 
36 

4:15 pm 

• Warrants & EFTs in the amount of $5,925,589 dated March 2025 42 
• Approve Documents Pending Board Ratification 04.30.25

o To provide board oversight for document management in Lucidoc.
44 

Old Business 
• Board Community Engagements

4:20 pm 

Pg 3 Board Packet



o To monthly discuss the status of board engagements.
o To review the public-input invite card

46 

• Board Policy & Procedure Review
o Code of Ethics (Revision Recommendation) Compliance Officer Hargett

47 

• Upcoming Commissioner Vacancies
o To discuss upcoming vacant positions; Commissioner #1-Morton & Position

#5-At Large Position.  The filing period is May 5th-9th.

66 

New Business 
• Resolution 25-06-Adopting the Community Health Improvement Services (CHIS)

Addendum
o To adopt the CHIS addendum which are the hospital activities related to

improving community needs named in the hospital’s Community Health Needs
Assessment (CHNA).  The annual CHIS addendum details these activities.

101 

4:25 pm 

Superintendent Report 
• Board Educational Articles

o Small-town America in crosshairs of Medicaid cuts
o The cost of nurse turnover in 24 numbers | 2025
o Leak sheds light on plan for hospital alliance
o WSHA & AWPHD Governance Education

107 
112 
115 
117 
121 

4:35 pm 

Meeting Summary & Evaluation 4:45 pm 
Next Board Meeting Dates and Times 

• Regular Board Meeting-May 28, 2025 @ 3:30 PM (TEAMS & In Person)
Next Committee Meeting Dates and Times 

• Compliance Committee Meeting-May 7, 2025 @ 12:00 PM (TEAMS)
• Finance Committee Meeting-May 21, 2025 @ 12:00 PM (TEAMS)
• Plant Planning Committee Meeting-May 28, 2025 @ 12:00 PM (TEAMS)

4:50 pm 

Adjournment 4:55 pm 

Pg 4 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Pg 5 Board Packet



 

  
-notates files with items to note. 

 
CONFIDENTIAL: Arbor Health peer review and quality improvement information protected from 
 disclosure or discovery under RCW 70.41.200 and 4.24.250 
 

 

MEDICAL STAFF PRIVILEGING 

The below providers are requesting appointment to the Arbor Health Medical Staff. All files have 
been reviewed for Quality Data, active state license, any malpractice claims, current liability 
insurance, peer references, all hospital affiliations, work history, National Practitioner Data Bank 
reports, sanctions reports, Department of Health complaints, Washington State Patrol background 
check and have been reviewed by the credentialing and medical executive committees including the 
starred items below. The credentialing and medical executive committees have recommended the 
following for approval. 

INITIAL APPOINTMENTS-4 

Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges 
•  Harsh Patel, MD 

Arbor Health-Emergency Medicine Privileges 
• Timothy Curlett, MD 

Radiology Consulting Privileges 
• Duard Enoch III, MD 

• Austen Lawrence, DO 

REAPPOINTMENTS-2 

Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges 
• Sheila Smith, MD 

Arbor Health-Sleep Medicine Privileges 
• Jakdej Nikomborirak, MD 

Pg 6 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT SPOTLIGHT 

Pg 7 Board Packet



Pg 8 Board Packet



Departments
Chemistry Hematology Coagulation

Molecular

Blood GasSerology Blood Bank

Pg 9 Board Packet



53617
52673

50471

57534

2021 2022 2023 2024

Laboratory Tests Completed

Year over Year trending

$4,336,592 $4,162,133 $4,234,658 

$5,280,190 

2021 2022 2023 2024

Laboratory Net Revenue

Pg 10 Board Packet



Staffing
Lab Manager recruitment

Janice Pendergast
20+ yrs at Swedish Medical Center 

Workforce stabilization

Pg 11 Board Packet



What patients are saying

Pg 12 Board Packet



Future planning
Chemistry analyzers replacement Space Planning 

Pg 13 Board Packet



Questions?

Pg 14 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Pg 15 Board Packet



 

 

Arbor Health Foundation meeting 
4-8-2024- Hybrid  

 1.      Call to order   
OUR MISSION:  
To raise funds and provide services that will support the viability and long-term 
goals of the Lewis County Hospital District No. 1. This includes, but is not limited 
to, taking a leadership role in maintaining and improving community connection 
and confidence in all aspects of the hospital’s health care system.   
 

• In attendance: 
 In Person: Char Hancock, Rob Mach, Marc Fisher, Paula Baker, Lenee 

Langham, Jeannie Walker, Tom Herrin, Shannon Kelly, Lynn Bishop, 
Martha Wright 

 Online: Julie Taylor, Martha Wright, Gwen Turner 
• Excused absences:  

 Katelin Forrest, Louise Fisher, Christy Greiter 
 
 

2.     Approval of March Treasurer’s Report and Minutes Fix the date for the next meeting to 
April 8, Shannon Kelly moves to approve the minutes and treasurer’s report with the correction 
and Tom seconds. Motion approved.  
 
  
3.     Administrators Report-  Rob Mach, strong financials for the first 3 months of the year.  
Some new equipment has been ordered and installed. All clinics will be getting new waiting 
room equipment.  The front entrance carpet is going to be replaced soon. The new to Arbor 
Health rehabilitation equipment has been received from Providence after the closure of all of 
their outpatient rehab facilities.  The equipment was surplused and given to Arbor Health. 
 
 
4.     Executive Directors Report:   
 

• Report on Family Resource fair – 157 attendees (36 families). 49 passports returned, 43 
resources on site.  The paper did an article and published pictures of the event.  

• Signup sheets – Please sign up for upcoming events.  
• Thrive after 55 fair June 28th  - looking for help from others with idea for participants.  
•  

 
5.     Old Business:  

Pg 16 Board Packet



 

 

• Blood pressure cuffs (10 physicians and advanced practice practitioners are asking for 10 
each) , Motion from Tom to purchase 100 bp cuffs Shannon second, not to exceed 
$2500. Motion passes. 

• 50/50 raffle update, there are no issues with increasing the number of tickets for the  
50/50 raffle.  We will update the number of tickets to 3000.  

  
  
6.     New Business: Char Hancock-sports physicals  - Last years free sport physicals were 
completely successful.  She is requesting we fund sports physicals again this year. Tom Herrin 
motioned we fund $1000 to sports physicals. Shannon Kelly second. Motion passes.  
 
 
7. Next Meeting: May 13th 
 
Good of the order please share.  

Pg 17 Board Packet



To:  Finance Committee 
From:  Finance Department 
Date:  April 4, 2025 
Subject:  March Financial Statement Review 
 
 
Volumes 
 
The district’s volume highlights show expected results for the month in Outpatient Registrations. 

 Skilled Nursing volumes were less than budgeted expectations by 23 days or 24%. 

 Emergency department volumes were less than budgeted expectations by 69 visits or 13%. 
 
Income Statement 
 
Results from Operations show net income of $164,646 for the month and $699,634 YTD. Net Operating 
Revenues were below budget by $95,356 for the month. Operating Expenses were below budgeted 
expectations by $166,835. 
 
Revenue highlights 
Month‐to‐date 

 Inpatient revenues were unfavorable to budget by $307,429 or 35%. 

 Outpatient revenues were favorable to budget by $507,716 or 12%. 
 
Year‐to‐date 

 Outpatient revenues were favorable to budget by 11% or $1,423,447. 
 
Expense highlights    
Month‐to‐date 

 Benefits expense was less than budgeted expectations by $89,669. 
o Group Health insurance expense was less than expected by $116,679. 

Year‐to‐date 

 Supplies expense category was over budget by $143,940 or 18%. 
o This is primarily due to higher‐than‐expected DME expenses. 

 
 
 
 

Pg 18 Board Packet



Balance Sheet 
 
Highlights in the Balance sheet show cash decreasing and Accounts Receivable decreasing. 
 

 Cash accounts decreased $650,187 to $4,642,045.  
o Days in cash increased from 38 days to 42 days.  

 Accounts receivable decreased $375,602. 
o AR days decreased from 58 to 54 days. 

 
 
 

Pg 19 Board Packet



Lewis County Hospital District No. 1
Board Financial Summary

March 31, 2025

YTD: 115              Budget: 138              Pr Yr: 151         YTD: 303 Budget: 291 Pr Yr: 322

YTD: 4,368 Bud: 4,368 Pr Yr: 3,931 YTD: 1441 Bud: 1575 Pr Yr: 1282

YTD: 7,731 Bud: 7,845 Pr Yr: 7,146

0

YTD: 4,368.00    Budget: 3,931.00    Pr Yr: ‐          YTD: 0 Budget: 0 Pr Yr: 0

Growth 

People and Operational Aspects

 200
 400
 600
 800

 1,000
 1,200
 1,400
 1,600

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Outpatient Registrations

2025 2025B 2024

10 
10 

4 

 300
 340
 380
 420
 460
 500
 540
 580

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

ER Registrations

Emer Outp Emer Admit 2025B 2024

 400
 650
 900

 1,150
 1,400
 1,650
 1,900
 2,150
 2,400
 2,650
 2,900

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Physician Clinic Visits

2025 2025B 2024

60 58 54
30

40

50

60

70

80

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Days in A/R

2025 2025B 2024

49
38 42

0

50

100

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Days Cash on Hand
Excludes Funded Depreciation

2025 2025B 2024

50  40  25  ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
0

20

40

60

80

100

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Inpatient Days

2025 2025B 2024

215  222  216 
 100
 120
 140
 160
 180
 200
 220
 240

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

FTE's

2025 2025B 2024

53 
55 

 35

 41

 47

 53

 59

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Average Hourly Rate

2025 2025B 2024

92  137  74  ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐
0

25
50
75

100
125
150

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

SNF/Swing Bed Days

2025 2025B 2024
Budget Adjusted

Pg 20 Board Packet



 Lewis County Public Hospital District No. 1
Balance Sheet
March, 2025 Prior-Year Incr/(Decr)

Current Month Prior-Month end From PrYr

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash 4,642,045$       5,292,232 6,170,247 (1,528,202)
Total Accounts Receivable 11,468,784 11,844,386 11,049,177 419,607
Reserve Allowances (4,299,681) (4,758,245) (4,250,094) (49,587)

Net Patient Accounts Receivable 7,169,103 7,086,141 6,799,083 370,020
Taxes Receivable 236,508 184,861 35,830 200,678
Prepaid Expenses 537,968 510,460 470,964 67,004
Inventory 248,048 243,788 238,552 9,496
Funds in Trust 1,928,995 1,921,614 1,913,639 15,355

Total Current Assets 14,762,667 15,239,095 15,628,316 (865,649)
Property, Buildings and Equipment 35,884,343 35,880,570 35,837,739 46,605
Accumulated Depreciation (26,877,791) (26,778,896) (26,588,876) (288,915)

Net Property, Plant, & Equipment 9,006,552 9,101,674 9,248,863 (242,311)
Right-of-use assets 904,159 924,944 1,168,907 (264,748)
Other Assets 2,496 2,551 2,661 (165)

Total Assets 24,675,874$     25,268,263 26,048,747 (1,372,873)

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 532,585 1,357,599 1,291,094 (758,509)
Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities 946,977 847,294 1,563,109 (616,132)
Accrued Vacation 1,032,694 963,473 984,338 48,355
Third Party Cost Settlement (51,544) 18,142 598,945 (650,489)
Interest Payable 73,405 48,937 0 73,405
Current Maturities - Debt 950,221 950,221 950,221 0
Other Payables 4,632 4,712 4,842 (210)

Current Liabilities 3,488,970 4,190,378 5,392,551 (1,903,581)
Total Notes Payable 381,756 407,948 460,195 (78,439)
Lease Liability 807,437 836,872 897,925 (90,488)
Net Bond Payable 4,106,062 4,106,062 4,106,062 0

Total Long Term Liabilities 5,295,255 5,350,883 5,464,182 (168,926)

Total Liabilities 8,784,226 9,541,261 10,856,733 (2,072,507)

General Fund Balance 15,192,014 15,192,014 15,192,014 0
Net Gain (Loss) 699,634 534,988 0 699,634

Fund Balance 15,891,648 15,727,002 15,192,014 699,634

Total Liabilities And Fund Balance 24,675,874$     25,268,263 26,048,747 (1,372,873)

Pg 21 Board Packet



 Lewis County Hospital District No. 1
Income Statement

March, 2025

C U R R E N T M O N T H Y E A R   T O   D A T E

Pr Yr Month % Var $ Var Budget Actual Actual Budget $ Var % Var Actual

779,036 -35% (307,429) 891,070 583,641 Inpatient Revenue 2,674,876 2,674,584 292 0% 2,755,014

3,773,238 12% 507,716 4,335,745 4,843,461 Outpatient Revenue 14,382,523 12,959,076 1,423,447 11% 10,971,822

575,193 -8% (56,804) 670,337 613,533 Clinic Revenue 1,875,685 2,011,011 (135,326) -7% 1,741,162

5,127,467 2% 143,483 5,897,152 6,040,635 Gross Patient Revenues 18,933,084 17,644,671 1,288,413 7% 15,467,998

1,760,413 -6% (139,072) 2,249,180 2,388,251 Contractual Allowances 7,095,368 6,780,893 (314,476) -5% 6,224,947

119,119 -45% (29,477) 65,521 94,998 Charity Care 269,793 200,927 (68,867) -34% 225,078

11,825 -126% (76,376) 60,484 136,860 Bad Debt 380,146 185,835 (194,311) -105% 129,553

1,891,356 -10% (244,925) 2,375,184 2,620,109 Deductions from Revenue 7,745,308 7,167,654 (577,653) -8% 6,579,577

3,236,111 -3% (101,441) 3,521,968 3,420,526 Net Patient Service Rev 11,187,776 10,477,016 710,760 7% 8,888,420
63.1% 5.2% 3.1% 59.7% 56.6% NPSR % 59.1% 59.4% 0.3% 0.5% 57.5%

134,912 4% 6,085 154,489 160,574 Other Operating Revenue 383,392 463,467 (80,075) -17% 290,074

3,371,023 -3% (95,356) 3,676,457 3,581,100 Net Operating Revenue 11,571,168 10,940,483 630,685 6% 9,178,494

Operating Expenses

1,896,627 0% (1,457) 2,244,926 2,246,383 Salaries & Wages 6,800,209 6,734,779 (65,430) -1% 5,717,717

386,260 22% 89,669 411,453 321,784 Benefits 1,300,148 1,216,379 (83,769) -7% 1,088,132

62,099 21% 11,843 56,157 44,314 Professional Fees 105,964 129,597 23,633 18% 157,796

217,285 -3% (8,102) 269,256 277,358 Supplies 949,047 805,107 (143,940) -18% 721,287

370,014 7% 28,484 404,894 376,409 Purchase Services 1,158,344 1,132,287 (26,056) -2% 1,104,478

46,994 27% 10,644 39,897 29,253 Utilities 139,159 129,931 (9,228) -7% 123,967

32,798 -5% (1,588) 34,570 36,158 Insurance 108,150 103,710 (4,440) -4% 98,339

43,998 30% 19,250 65,051 45,800 Other Expenses 149,856 207,845 57,988 28% 147,988

3,056,074 4% 148,744 3,526,202 3,377,459 EBDITA Expenses 10,710,877 10,459,634 (251,243) -2% 9,159,704

314,949 36% 53,387 150,254 203,642 EBDITA 860,292 480,849 379,442 79% 18,790

9.3% -39.1% -1.6% 4.1% 5.7% EBDITA % 7.4% 4.4% -3.0% -69.2% 0.2%

Capital Cost

124,842 7% 9,517 129,251 119,735 Depreciation 350,973 387,752 36,778 9% 363,591

30,603 23% 8,574 37,881 29,306 Interest Cost 88,791 116,043 27,252 23% 92,166

3,211,519 5% 166,835 3,693,334 3,526,499 Operating Expenses 11,150,642 10,963,429 (187,213) -2% 9,615,461

159,504 -424% 71,478 (16,878) 54,601 Operating Income/(Loss) 420,527 (22,946) 443,473 -1933% (436,968)

4.7% -0.5% 1.5% Operating Margin % 3.6% -0.2% -4.8%

(3,822) 0% (22,959) 0 22,959 Mcare/Mcaid Pr Yr 22,959 0 (22,959) 0% (3,822)

Non Operating Activity

88,374 10% 8,974 89,199 98,173 Non-Op Revenue 277,997 267,596 10,402 4% 246,451

4,883 -174% (7,043) 4,044 11,087 Non-Op Expenses 21,849 12,133 (9,716) -80% 14,587

83,491 2% 1,932 85,154 87,086 Net Non Operating Activity 256,148 255,463 686 0% 231,864

239,173 141% 96,369 68,277 164,646 Net Income / (Loss) 699,634 232,517 467,117 201% (208,926)

7.1% 1.9% 4.6% Net Income Margin % 6.0% 2.1% -2.3%

 Unaudited

Pg 22 Board Packet



Arbor Health
2025 Forecast 

2025  Budget

March Actual 

YTD April‐Dec Budget

2025        

Forecast

Inpatient Revenues 10,669,498 2,674,876 8,002,124 10,677,000
Outpatient Revenues 51,975,806 14,382,523 38,981,855 53,364,378
Clinic Revenues 8,044,060 1,875,685 6,033,045 7,908,730
Gross patient Revenue 70,689,364 18,933,084 53,017,023 71,950,107

Deductions from Revenues 29,114,658 7,722,349 21,835,994 29,558,343
41% 41% 41% 41%

Net Patient Revenues 41,574,706 11,210,735 31,181,030 42,391,765

Other Operating Revenue 1,853,867 383,392 1,390,400 1,773,792

Total Operating Revenues 43,428,573 11,594,127 32,571,430 44,165,557

Operating Expenses

Salaries & Wages 26,979,068 6,800,209 20,234,301 27,034,510

Benefits 4,835,195 1,300,148 3,626,396 4,926,544

Professional Fees 462,943 105,964 347,207 453,171

Supplies 3,171,647 949,047 2,378,735 3,327,782

Purchase Services 4,684,720 1,158,344 3,513,540 4,671,884

Utilities 475,698 139,159 356,774 495,933

Insurance 414,839 108,150 311,129 419,279

Other Expenses 784,750 149,856 588,563 738,419

Depreciation 1,561,146 350,973 1,170,860 1,521,833

Interest Cost 456,589 88,791 342,442 431,233

Operating Expenses 43,826,595 11,150,641 32,869,946 44,020,587

Operating Income (398,022) 443,486 (298,517) 144,970
‐1% 4% ‐1% 0%

Non Operating Activity

Non‐Operating Income 1,021,848 256,148 766,386 1,022,534

623,826 699,634 467,870 1,167,504

 06/Jan/2023 11:23:30 AMPg 23 Board Packet



  

MTD YTD

Cash Flows from Operating Activites
Net Income 164,646            699,634            
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
   cash provided by operating activities

Decrease/(Increase) in Net Patient Accounts receivable (82,962) (370,020)
Decrease/(Increase) in Taxes receivable (51,647) (200,678)
Decrease/(Increase) in Est 3rd Party Receivable 0 0
Decrease/(Increase) in Prepaid expenses (27,508) (67,003)
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories (4,260) (9,496)
Decrease in Other Current Assets 0 0
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued payroll liabilities 168,904 (567,776)
Increase/(Decrease) in 3rd Party cost stlmt liabilities (69,686) (650,489)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts payable (825,094) (758,721)
Increase/(Decrease) in Interest payable 24,468 73,405
Depreciation expense 98,895 288,915

Net Cash Flow from Operations (604,244) (1,562,229)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Cash paid for

Purchases of Fixed assets (3,773) (46,604)
Right-of-use assets 20,838 264,913

Net Cash Flow from (used) in Investing Activities 17,065 218,309

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Cash paid for

Additions to long-term debt 0 0
 Principal payments of long-term liabilities (26,192) (78,438)

 Lease liabilities (29,435) (90,488)

Net Cash Flow from (used) in Financing Activities (55,627) (168,926)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (642,806) (1,512,846)
Cash at Beginning of Period 7,213,846$        8,083,886$       

Cash at End of Period 6,571,040$        6,571,040$       

Arbor Health
Cash Flow Statement

For the Month Ending March 2025

Pg 24 Board Packet



Arbor Health
Cash Forecast Actual Actual Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

January  February March April May June July August September October November December

Planned Cash Reserves

Total Cash Balance  8,083,887        7,441,734     7,213,845     6,571,040     6,702,465     6,833,890     6,965,315     7,096,740     7,228,165     7,359,590      7,491,015     7,622,440    

Operating Reserves (1,913,639)       (1,921,614)    (1,928,995)    (1,913,639)    (1,913,639)    (1,913,639)    (1,913,639)    (1,913,639)    (1,913,639)    (1,913,639)     (1,913,639)    (1,913,639)   

Commitments and Contingencies ‐                   

Cash, Net of Reserves 6,170,248        5,520,120     5,284,850     4,657,401     4,788,826     4,920,251     5,051,676     5,183,101     5,314,526     5,445,951      5,577,376     5,708,801    
Cash Receipts
Patient Receipts ‐ Run Rate 4,133,246        3,738,827     3,691,245     3,464,559     3,464,559     3,464,559     3,464,559     3,464,559     3,464,559     3,464,559      3,464,559     3,464,559    
Non Operating 71,050              85,154           98,173           85,154           85,154           85,154           85,154           85,154           85,154           85,154            85,154           85,154          
Other Operating Receipts 121,001           154,489         160,574         154,489         154,489         154,489         154,489         154,489         154,489         154,489          154,489         154,489        

Total Cash Receipts 4,325,297        3,978,470     3,949,992     3,704,202     3,704,202     3,704,202     3,704,202     3,704,202     3,704,202     3,704,202      3,704,202     3,704,202    

Cash Disbursements
Payroll and Benefits 3,842,373        2,960,499     2,825,377     2,651,189     2,651,189     2,651,189     2,651,189     2,651,189     2,651,189     2,651,189      2,651,189     2,651,189    
A/P ‐  1,067,126        1,391,754     1,728,805     830,382         830,382         830,382         830,382         830,382         830,382         830,382          830,382         830,382        
Debt Coverage 57,867              55,434           55,627           38,050           38,050           38,050           38,050           38,050           38,050           38,050            38,050           38,050          
Property, Plan, Equipment 84                     (201,328)       (17,012)         53,156           53,156           53,156           53,156           53,156           53,156           53,156            53,156           53,156          

Total Cash Disbursements 4,967,450        4,206,359     4,592,797     3,572,777     3,572,777     3,572,777     3,572,777     3,572,777     3,572,777     3,572,777      3,572,777     3,572,777    

Net Change in Cash (642,153)          (227,889)       (642,805)       131,425         131,425         131,425         131,425         131,425         131,425         131,425          131,425         131,425        

Ending Cash Balance 7,441,734        7,213,845     6,571,040     6,702,465     6,833,890     6,965,315     7,096,740     7,228,165     7,359,590     7,491,015      7,622,440     7,753,865    
Ending Cash Net Of Reserves 5,528,095        5,292,231     4,642,045     4,788,826     4,920,251     5,051,676     5,183,101     5,314,526     5,445,951     5,577,376      5,708,801     5,840,226    

Pg 25 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  

Pg 26 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
REGULAR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

March 26, 2025, at 3:30 p.m. 
Conference Room 1 & 2 and via TEAMS 

Meeting ID: 278 815 328 169 
Passcode: 9uo7gX9H 
Dial: +1.360.302.2717 

Phone Conference ID: 705 103 053# 
 

 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Unexcused/Excused 
Absences  
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
 
 

Board Chair Herrin called the 
meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
 
Commissioners present:  
☒ Tom Herrin, Board Chair 
☒ Wes McMahan, Secretary 
☒ Craig Coppock 
☒ Van Anderson 
☒ Chris Schumaker 
 
Others present:  
☒ Robert Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Shana Garcia, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Barbara Van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☒ Colleen Littlejohn, ACNO 
☒ Cheryl Cornwell, CFO 
☐ Shannon Kelly, CHRO 
☒ Julie Taylor, COSO  
☐ Dr. Kevin McCurry, CMO 
☐ Matthew Lindstrom, CFPO 

☐ Spencer Hargett, Compliance 
Officer 
☒ Barb Goble, Medical Staff 
Coordinator 
☒ Dr. Don Allison, Chief of Staff 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Pg 27 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

☒ Jessica Scogin, Foundation 
Manager 
☒ Clint Scogin, Controller 
☒ Robert Houser, Imaging 
Manager 
☒ Buddy Rose, Journalist 
☒ Diane Markham, Marketing & 
Communication Manager 
☐ Julie Johnson, QMRC Manager 
☐ Nicholas Tyler, Pharmacist 
☐ Laura Glass, Patient Care 
Services Director 
 
Board Chair Herrin noted the chat 
function has been disabled and the 
meeting will not be recorded.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

 Secretary McMahan 
made a motion to 
approve the agenda.  
Commissioner 
Coppock seconded, 
and the motion 
passed unanimously. 

  

Conflicts of Interest Board Chair Herrin asked the 
attendees to state any conflicts of 
interest with today’s agenda.   

None.   

Comments and 
Remarks 

Commissioners: Commissioner 
Anderson attended the Mineral 
Rural Fire District Meeting with 
Board Chair Herrin and CNO/CQO 
van Duren.  Commissioner 
Anderson thanked both for joining 
in to be there to answer 
questions/concerns.  Commissioner 
Anderson shared being incredibly 
grateful to CFO Cornwell and her 
service to the District while wishing 
her the best.  Lastly, thank you to 
the IT Department for updating the 
TEAMS App for upcoming 
meetings. 
 
Commissioner Coppock also 
thanked CFO Cornwell for her time, 
especially with improving 
processes, revenue and financial 
health of the District.      
 
Audience: None.  

 
 

  
 
 

Pg 28 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Executive Session  
• RCW 

70.41.200  

Board Chair Herrin announced 
going into executive session at 3:35 
p.m. for 10 minutes to discuss RCW 
70.41.200-Medical Privileging and 
Quality Improvement Oversight 
Report.  At 3:45 p.m. Board Chair 
Herrin extended Executive Session 
by 5 minutes.  The Board returned 
to open session at 3:50 p.m.  Board 
Chair Herrin noted no decisions 
were made in Executive Session. 
 
Initial Appointments: 

Telestroke/Neurology 
Consulting Privileges 
1. Taylor Anderson, MD 

Reappointments: 

Telestroke/Neurology 
Consulting Privileges 
1. Bruce Geryk, MD 

2. Yi Mao, MD 

3. Aixa Espinosa Morales, MD 

Radiology Consulting Privileges 
4. James Hills, MD 

5. Marc Koenig, MD 

6. Phillip Lowe, MD 

7. Jennifer McEvoy, MD 

8. Garland McQuinn, MD 

9. Hartley Sirkis, MD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner 
Coppock made a 
motion to approve the 
Medical Privileging 
as presented and 
Commissioner 
Anderson seconded.  
The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  

Department Spotlight 
• Imaging 

Imaging Manager Houser shared 
insight into diagnostic imaging, its 
importance, common techniques 
and services provided.  Provided 
updates on staffing and the 
challenge to fill positions, patient 
satisfaction, volumes and revenues.  
Celebrated accomplishments in 
2023-2024, as well as noted 
projects in the pipeline. 
 
Imaging Manager Houser noted the 
biggest challenges are regulations, 

   

Pg 29 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

staffing and cash to grow.  The 
good news shows in the profit 
margin, additional services and 
additional opportunities shared in 
the work in progress.   

Board Committee 
Reports 

• Hospital 
Foundation 
Report 

Board Chair Herrin highlighted the 
Foundation selected this year’s 
fund-a-need, a Solo Step for the 
Rehabilitation Services Department.  
Also, the Foundation approved 
employee gym equipment for the 
hospital staff.  Board Chair Herrin 
shared the Family Resource Fair 
was a huge success, 33 resource 
vendors and approximately 157 
people attend.  The Foundation is 
brainstorming a new event/resource 
fair idea for seniors. 

 
 

  

• Finance 
Committee 
Report 

Commissioner Anderson 
highlighted the financial statistics 
for the month of February.  Noting 
while it was a shorter month, 
volumes were favorable and shared 
variances to budget.  Days in cash 
decreased but should recover.  
Expense variances were noted for 
salary and wages, but CFO 
Cornwell shared both benefits and 
supplies are recoverable expenses. 

 
 

  

Consent Agenda  Board Chair Herrin announced the 
consent agenda items for 
consideration of approval: 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. February 26, 2025, 

Regular Board 
Meeting 

b. March 12, 2025, 
QIO Committee 
Meeting 

c. March 19, 2025, 
Finance Committee 
Meeting 

2. Warrants & EFTs in the 
amount of $4,568,072 dated 
February 2025 

3. RES-25-05-Declaring to 
Surplus or Dispose of 
Personal Property 

Commissioner 
Anderson made a 
motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda with 
the proposed edit to 
the QIO Meeting 
Minutes and 
Commissioner 
Schumaker 
seconded.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 30 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

4. Approve Documents 
Pending Board Ratification 
03.26.25 

 
Commissioner Anderson proposed 
editing the 031225 QIO Meeting 
Minutes by replacing .12 with 1.2 in 
the following sentence, 
“Commissioner Anderson noted 
again that the Grievance Rate is still 
incorrect for 2023 and should be 1.2 
not .0012. 

 
 
 
 
Edit QIO Meeting 
Minutes. 
 
Minutes, Resolutions 
and Warrants will be 
sent for electronic 
signatures. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

 
 
 
 
03.28.25 
 
 
 
 
03.28.25 
 

Old Business 
• Board 

Community 
Engagements  

Commissioner Coppock shared 
patient feedback that they love the 
services offered here but requested 
the phone tree be reviewed.  More 
specifically when a patient misses a 
call from Arbor Health that a 
patient can call the number back to 
cancel or reschedule appointments.  
Superintendent Mach shared this 
topic is in the works and being 
reviewed in a workgroup.  Board 
Chair Herrin noted the biggest 
concerns/take-aways from the 
Mineral Rural Fire District Meeting 
was diversions and loving the Rapid 
Care Clinic with hopes of 
expanding hours.  Commissioner 
Anderson plans to attend the April 
23rd Mossyrock Fire District 
Meeting at 6 pm extended the 
invitation to join. 
 
Superintendent Mach closed with 
draft cards are being designed to 
share with the public to collect data.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Present Public Input 
Card. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent 
Mach 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
04.30.25 

New Business 
• Upcoming 

Commissione
r Vacancies 

Board Chair Herrin shared the Board 
has two open vacancies, 
Commissioner Position #1 & #5.  In 
past years the Board has been 
successful in building interest by 
hosting a Special Board Meeting to 
share what it means to be a 
commissioner, as well as answer any 
questions prior to candidates 
running for office.  The Board has 
agreed to host a Special Board 
Meeting on Monday, April 14th at 6 
pm.  This way the Board can invite 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Schedule Special 
Board Meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant Garcia 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prior to 04.04.25 

Pg 31 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

interested candidates to the April 
30th Regular Board Meeting prior to 
filing the week of May 5th. 

Superintendent 
Report 

Superintendent Mach highlighted 
the memo in the packet and added 
the following updates: 

1. Legislative updates include: 
a. State insurance 

plans (PEBB & 
SEBB) there will 
be a rural carve out. 

b. Prepackaged 
prescriptions in the 
ED for patients to 
use in the first 24-
48 hours. 

2. Hired a locums at Morton 
Clinic who will backfill Dr. 
Fritz. 

3. New patient menus are live, 
so patients can choose.  
Kudos to the whole team 
that made this happen. 

4. Hired a new OR 
Coordinator Amy Hoejsi. 

5. Acquired Rehabilitation 
Services equipment for free 
from Providence. 

6. Collaborating with the new 
Randle Library on the 
reading path behind Randle 
Clinic.  Plan to tell the AH 
story. 

CNO/CQO van Duren happily 
shared hiring more permanent 
nurses, as well as attending a 
luncheon on April 10th to meet new 
grads at Centralia College.  
Superintendent Mach thanks CFO 
Cornwell and the amazing job 
completed in the Finance 
Department.  Appreciate the hard 
work and friendship, best of luck in 
the future.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Meeting Summary 
& Evaluation 

Superintendent Mach provided a 
meeting summary. 
 
Commissioner Anderson 
appreciated the meeting and seeing 
Secretary McMahan in person.  
Schedule ran longer due to technical 

 
 
 
 

  

Pg 32 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

7 | P a g e  
 

difficulties and the great department 
spotlight.  Commissioner 
Schumaker thanked Commissioner 
Anderson for being the face of the 
Board in the community and good to 
see Secretary McMahan.  
Commissioner Coppock noted a 
good meeting, going to greatly miss 
CFO Cornwell and appreciate the 
good articles especially the Dr. Oz 
one.  Secretary McMahan 
apologized for missing last month’s 
meeting due to illness and plans to 
be more available with respiratory 
illness season behind us.  
Superintendent Mach noted the 
topics discussed today are the same 
issues being discussed at the Rural 
Collaborative.  Specifically, 
hospitals want to grow, scared to 
spend money and how do we staff.  
Lastly, thank you Shana for your 
time as the Executive Assistant and 
please be patient as we transition the 
role to Misty Stephens.  Board Chair 
Herrin appreciates the board coming 
together and feeling comfortable to 
share even when it may be 
uncomfortable.  

Adjournment  Commissioner 
Anderson moved, and 
Commissioner 
Coppock seconded to 
adjourn the meeting 
at 5:17 p.m.  The 
motion passed 
unanimously.     

  

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Wes McMahan, Secretary          Date 

Pg 33 Board Packet



    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
SPECIAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING 

April 14, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 
Conference Rooms 1 & 2 &/or TEAMS 

Meeting ID: 277 490 953 292 
Passcode: n9yE3oW7 
Dial: +1.360.302.2717 

Phone Conference ID: 545 349 259# 

Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

Vision Statement 
To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 

1 | P a g e

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Excused/Unexcused 
Absences 
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 

Board Chair Herrin called the 
meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Commissioners present: 
☒ Tom Herrin, Board Chair
☒ Wes McMahan, Secretary
☒ Craig Coppock
☒ Van Anderson
☒ Chris Schumaker

Others present: 
☒ Misty Stephens, Executive
Assistant
☒ Robert Mach, Superintendent
☒ Shana Garcia, Contract &
Accreditation Manager

Conflicts of Interest Board Chair Herrin asked the Board 
to state any conflicts of interest with 
today’s agenda.   

None noted. 

Reading of the Notice 
of the Special 
Meeting  

Board Chair Herrin read the special 
board meeting notice. 

Pg 34 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

2 | P a g e  
 

To discuss 
Commissioner 
Position #1-Morton 
& Commissioner 
Position #5-At Large 
Position 

Commissioner Herrin discussed a 
possible candidate pending 
clarification from the Elections 
Office in regards to holding two 
elective positions at the same time, 
along with verifying whether a 
candidate can be listed twice on the 
same ballot. 
 
The Board discussed the process if 
no one runs for office and if no one 
is elected. 
 
The Board reviewed the District 
Map and Board Member Job 
Description. Executive Assistant 
Stephens will create a candidate 
packet to share with interested 
constituents.  
 
The Board requested Marketing & 
Communications Manager 
Markham share the open 
commissioner positions on social 
media to peak interest in the 
upcoming vacancies. 

Contact the Elections 
Office to clarify 
candidacy questions 
and provide  
information to the 
Board.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Create candidate 
packets for 
distribution via email 
or by paper. 
 
 
 
Share Commissioner 
vacancies on social 
media weeks April 
21st & 28th. 
 
 
 

Executive 
Assistant 
Stephens and 
Contract & 
Accreditation 
Manager Garcia 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant 
Stephens 
 
 
 
 
Marketing & 
Communication
s Manager 
Markham 
 
 

By end of week 
04/18/25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By end of week 
04/18/25 
 
 
 
 
 
By end of week 
04/18/25 

Public Comment Board Chair Herrin noted no 
community members present. 

None noted.   

Adjournment Commissioner Coppock moved, 
and Secretary McMahan seconded 
to adjourned at 7:00 p.m.  The 
motion passed unanimously. 

   

 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Wes McMahan, Secretary          Date 

Pg 35 Board Packet



 
 

    LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
Finance Committee Meeting 
April 23, 2025, at 12:00 p.m. 

Via Teams 
 

 Mission Statement 
To foster trust and nurture a healthy community. 

 
Vision Statement 

To provide every patient the best care and every employee the best place to work. 
 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

1 | P a g e  
 

Call to Order 
Reading the Mission 
& Vision Statements 
Roll Call 
Excused/ Unexcused 
Absences 
 
 
 

Commissioner Anderson called the 
meeting to order via Teams at 12:00 
p.m. 
 
Commissioner(s) Present in Person 
or via Teams: 
☒ Van Anderson, Commissioner 
☒ Wes McMahan, Secretary 
 
Committee Member(s) Present in 
Person or via Zoom: 
☒ Misty Stephens, Executive 
Assistant 
☒ Shana Garcia, Contract & 
Accreditation Manager 
☒ Robert Mach, Superintendent 
☒ Marc Fisher, Community 
Member 
☒ Clint Scogin, Controller 
☒ Barbara van Duren, CNO/CQO 
☒ Jessica Niedert, Business Office 
Manager 
☒ Janice Cramer, Patient Access 
Manager 
☒ Colleen Littlejohn, ACNO 

Excused: 
 
Unexcused: 
 

  

Approval or 
Amendment of 
Agenda 

Secretary McMahan requested to 
amend the agenda by adding 
Legislative Updates to CFO 
Financial Review under Old 
Business. 

CNO/CQO van Duren 
made a motion to 
approve the amended 
agenda and 
Commissioner 
McMahan seconded.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 36 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 

Conflicts of Interest Commissioner Anderson asked the 
Committee to state any conflicts of 
interest with today’s amended 
agenda.  

None noted.   

Consent Agenda Commissioner Anderson announced 
the following in consent agenda up 
for approval: 

1. Review of Finance Minutes 
–March 19, 2025 

2. Board Oversight Activities  
3. Review Warrants & EFT’s 

in the amount of 
$5,925,589 dated March 
2025 

Superintendent Mach noted 
Warrants & EFT’s were higher due 
to three payrolls in the month of 
March and Optum take back. 
 
The Finance Committee supports 
the Warrants and EFT’s and will 
recommend approval at the Board 
level in Consent Agenda. 

Superintendent Mach 
made a motion to 
approve the consent 
agenda and Secretary 
McMahan seconded.  
The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Finance 
Committee supported 
requesting the Board’s 
approval of the 
Warrants & EFT’s at 
the Regular Board 
Meeting in Consent 
Agenda.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Assistant 
Stephens 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
04.30.25 Regular 
Board Meeting 

Old Business 
• CFO 

Financial 
Review 

Superintendent Mach highlighted 
net income $164,646 for month, 
$699,634 YTD. Operating Revenue 
& Expenses below budget. Benefits 
expense was less than budget and 
Supplies expense was over budget. 
Balance Sheet shows Cash on Hand 
is up from 38 to 42 days and 
Accounts Receivable is decreased 
from 58 to 54 days. Inpatient days 
are down. Swing bed is strong.  
 
Controller Scogin noted Accounts 
Payable being elevated YTD due to 
the disputed Optum payment of half 
a million dollars because of the 
Arbor Health (AH) Contract and 
Rates being loaded incorrectly by 
Optum.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg 37 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Commissioner Anderson asked for 
clarification on Right of Use Assets. 
Controller Scogin responded these 
are operating leases recognized as 
debt. 
 
Secretary McMahan noted the 
Legislative updates indicate 
hospitals cannot report bad debt to 
credit reporting agencies. Billing 
Office Manager Niedert expressed 
concern that there will be no 
incentive for patients to pay their 
medical bills, which may negatively 
impact the District. Secretary 
McMahan agrees this has strong 
potential to affect the District. 
Superintendent Mach stated both 
Multicare & Providence were 
supportive of the bill. Once the law 
is enacted with interpretation the 
District will operationalize.  
 
Community Member Fisher noted 
an increase in Bad Debt.  Billing 
Office Manager Niedert will 
review.  Secretary McMahan 
appreciated CMO Dr. McCurry’s 
Letter to the Editor as an effort to 
mitigate this topic. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Billing Office Manager 
Niedert will investigate 
contributing factors to 
the increase in Bad 
Debt. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Billing Office 
Manager  
Niedert 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
05.21.25 Finance 
Committee 
Meeting 

• WIPFLI 
Financial 
Audit 

Superintendent Mach noted WipFli 
audit and cost report should be 
completed by April 29th to be 
presented at the May 28th Regular 
Board Meeting.  
 
Secretary McMahan inquired as to 
whether an audit is done at the same 
time as an CFO exits. 
Superintendent Mach noted there 
will not be an additional audit; 
however, a mid-year Cost Report is 
routine. 

   

New Business 
• 2024 Self 

Insured 
Health 
Insurance 

Controller Scogin reported normal 
upward trends at yearend as 
deductibles are met, and individuals 
are using their health benefits. 

   

Pg 38 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

Quarter 4 
Overview 

• 2025 Self 
Insured 
Health 
Insurance 
Quarter 1 
Overview 

Controller Scogin reported YTD the 
self-funded plan is tracking. Stop 
Loss Insurance recovered monies 
from prior months.  The Benefit 
Expense is incurred in the month 
and the offset at a later date. 

   

• CFO 
Replacement 

Superintendent Mach reported that 
once WipFli completes the financial 
audit and cost report, the District 
will engage a remote CFO. 

Invite Remote CFO to 
upcoming meetings. 

Executive 
Assistant 
Stephens 

Tentatively 
05.21.25 or 
06.18.25 Finance 
Committee 
Meeting 

• ERC Funds Superintendent Mach reported 
excellent news, the ERC Funds 
were approved at $1,820,781 minus 
administrative fees.  Cash on Hand 
should increase significantly. 
Commissioner Anderson asked if 
the District expects more funds in 
the future.  Superintendent Mach 
noted no further ERC funds 
expected. 

   

• Washington 
Distressed 
Hospital 
Grant 

Superintendent Mach reported 
qualifying to reapply for the WA 
Distressed Hospital Grant due to 
having less than 60 days of Cash on 
Hand. The District applied for an 
estimated $750k in hopes of 
continuing to serve the Medicaid 
population and offsetting the 
shortfall. 

.   

• Capital 
Review 

Nothing to report.    

• Surplus or 
Dispose of 
Personal 
Property 

Nothing to report.    

Appendix Superintendent Mach reported 
mixed messages from the State and 
Federal agencies around Medicaid. 
It is a waiting game now for federal 
approval.  
 
Superintendent Mach shared AH is 
using TRC to help navigate through 
Payer-Provider relations. 
 
Commissioner Anderson noted 
education funding is behind budget. 

 
 
 
 

  

Pg 39 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Superintendent Mach reported that 
Skillsets was recently implemented 
and is open to all employees for 
education opportunities. Employees 
were notified and provided log-in 
information at the end of March. 
 
Community Member Fisher 
inquired as to the status of MRI. 
Superintendent Mach reported the 
project fell through due to state 
approval and reviewing other 
options. 
 
Commissioner Anderson references 
rental expenses high on rental 
properties.  Superintendent Mach 
reported normal maintenance 
expenses. 
 
Commissioner Anderson references 
revenue by payer type, high on self-
pay. CNO/CQO van Duren 
commented that patients come in as 
self-pay but then later are assisted 
with obtaining coverage. Patient 
Access Manager Cramer 
commented that patients come in 
but do not meet medical necessity 
to stay here but cannot be placed in 
which case cannot bill insurance.  

Meeting Summary 
& Evaluation 

Superintendent Mach noted good 
meeting, thanked Controller Scogin, 
Billing Office Manager Niedert and 
Patient Access Manager Cramer for 
assisting in the meeting.  
 
Secretary McMahan stated a good 
meeting and that the District is 
going through cooky times and 
appreciates the questions and input 
throughout the meeting. 
 
Community Member Fisher stated 
being pleased with the meeting and 
would like to see a breakdown on 
the bond and current liabilities. 
 
Billing Office Manager Niedert 
noted great meeting, appreciates 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Add a long-term debt 
schedule to next 
month’s meeting.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Controller 
Scogin 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
05.21.25 Finance 
Committee 
Meeting 

Pg 40 Board Packet



AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION OWNER DUE DATE 
 

 

6 | P a g e  
 

everyone’s input and will research 
bad debt increase. 
 
Patient Access Manager Cramer 
stated nothing to add and 
appreciates being involved in these 
meetings to learn more. 
 
CNO/CQO van Duren appreciates 
Superintendent Mach for taking 
care of the team and the financial 
health of the organization. 
 
ACNO Littlejohn is grateful to be 
participating and learning ways to 
contribute to the meetings. 

Adjournment Commissioner Anderson adjourned 
the meeting at 12:48 pm.   

   

 

Pg 41 Board Packet



WARRANT & EFT LISTING NO.        2025-03 
 
RECORD OF CLAIMS ALLOWED BY THE 
BOARD OF LEWIS COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The following vouchers have been audited, 
charged to the proper account, and are within the 
budget appropriation. 
 
                CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify, under 
penalty of perjury, that the materials have been 
furnished, as described herein, and that the claim 
is a just, due and unpaid obligation against 
LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 
and that I am authorized to authenticate and 
certify said claim. 
 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert Mach, Superintendent/CEO 

We, the undersigned Lewis County Hospital 
District No. 1 Commissioners, do hereby certify 
that the merchandise or services hereinafter 
specified has been received and that total 
Warrants and EFT’s are approved for payment 
in the amount of  
 
$5,925,589 this   30th day 
 
of April 2025 
 
 
 
 
Board Chair, Tom Herrin   
 
 
 
Secretary, Wes McMahan 
 
 
 
Commissioner, Craig Coppock  
    
 
 
Commissioner, Van Anderson 
 
 
 
Commissioner, Chris Schumaker

 
 
SEE WARRANT & EFT REGISTER in the amount of $5,925,589 dated March 1, 2025 – March 31, 2025. 

Pg 42 Board Packet



138108 03/21/2025 1,945.00 Dept of Health

0.00

ARBOR HEALTH WARRANT REGISTER SUMMARY

March 31, 2025

Pg 43 Board Packet



LCHD No. 1's Policies, Procedures 
& Plans: Departments:

1
Critical Access, Quality, Patient 
Safety & Risk Evaluation Quality

In order to access the above documents you will need to log into Lucidoc.  Once you have logged 
into Lucidoc, on the top toolbar click "My Meetings" and select the upcoming Board meeting date 

that’s highlighted in green to see the agenda with documents needing to be approved.  You are 
able to view the documents once in the agenda.  If the date is highlighted in yellow that means 

the agenda has not been released yet.

Documents Awaiting Board Ratification 04.30.25

Pg 44 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 

Pg 45 Board Packet



Pg 46 Board Packet



Pg 47 Board Packet



Pg 48 Board Packet



Pg 49 Board Packet



Pg 50 Board Packet



Pg 51 Board Packet



Pg 52 Board Packet



Pg 53 Board Packet



Pg 54 Board Packet



Pg 55 Board Packet



Pg 56 Board Packet



Pg 57 Board Packet



Pg 58 Board Packet



Pg 59 Board Packet



Pg 60 Board Packet



Pg 61 Board Packet



Pg 62 Board Packet



Pg 63 Board Packet



Pg 64 Board Packet



Pg 65 Board Packet



 

 

 

 
 
 
Dear community member,  
 
Have you ever considered serving your community through public office? Now might be the perfect 
opportunity. Lewis County Hospital District No. 1, dba Arbor Health, has two hospital commissioner positions 
up for election. One position is open to Morton residents while the other, an at-large position, is open to any 
registered voter who resides within the hospital district boundaries.  
 
If you have an interest in either position, you must declare your intent between May 5 through May 9 to 
become a candidate. For more information on the procedure for filing and a map of the hospital district, visit 
https://elections.lewiscountywa.gov/candidate-filing-information/ . 
 
The hospital commissioner role 
A hospital commissioner is a county-elected position with a six-year term. The position involves 
governance oversight of the hospital policies and standards. The commissioners review, discuss and 
collaborate with the Superintendent/Chief Executive Officer on the strategic direction of the Hospital 
District.  
 
The Board of Commissioners conduct hospital district business monthly in meetings that are open to the 
public. Each commissioner also participates in two committees that meet either monthly or quarterly. 
While a background in management, business, finance or healthcare can be a benefit to a commissioner, 
it is not in any way required. Commissioner training and education is encouraged and provided for all 
board members. In fact, the Washington State Hospital Association (WSHA) supports new 
commissioners in understanding their governance role. WSHA sponsors educational opportunities, 
meetings and conferences throughout the year to give commissioners the opportunity for on-going 
education. The Association of Washington Public Hospital Districts (AWPHD) offers Commissioner 
Resources as well, visit Commissioner Resources | Association of Washington Public Hospital Districts. 
 
By being a hospital commissioner, you can serve your community and help ensure that quality 
healthcare remains available to East Lewis County residents. While the commissioner position is not a 
paid position, stipends are available for meetings and education. Also, another benefit available to 
elected commissioners is the opportunity for healthcare insurance. To find out more about the 
insurance and stipends, contact Arbor Health Administration at 360-496-3770. 
 
We encourage you to step up to this challenge. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Pg 66 Board Packet

https://elections.lewiscountywa.gov/candidate-filing-information/
https://www.awphd.org/resources/commissioner-resources/


Pg 67 Board Packet



Pg 68 Board Packet



Pg 69 Board Packet



Pg 70 Board Packet



Pg 71 Board Packet



Pg 72 Board Packet



Pg 73 Board Packet



Pg 74 Board Packet



Pg 75 Board Packet



Pg 76 Board Packet



Pg 77 Board Packet



Pg 78 Board Packet



Pg 79 Board Packet



Pg 80 Board Packet



Pg 81 Board Packet



Pg 82 Board Packet



Pg 83 Board Packet



Pg 84 Board Packet



Pg 85 Board Packet



Pg 86 Board Packet



Pg 87 Board Packet



����������

Pg 88 Board Packet



Pg 89 Board Packet



Pg 90 Board Packet



Pg 91 Board Packet



Pg 92 Board Packet



Pg 93 Board Packet



Pg 94 Board Packet



Pg 95 Board Packet



Pg 96 Board Packet



Pg 97 Board Packet



Pg 98 Board Packet



��
Pg 99 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

Pg 100 Board Packet



 
LEWIS COUNTY HOSPITAL DISTRICT NO. 1 

MORTON, WASHINGTON 
 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 
COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT 
SERVICES (CHIS) ADDENDUM    RESOLUTION NO. 25-06 
 
WHEREAS, the Lewis County Hospital District No. 1 owns and operates Arbor Health, a 25-bed 
Critical Access Hospital located in Morton, Washington, and; 
 

WHEREAS, the Lewis County Hospital District No. 1 feel that this is worthy, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commissioners of Lewis County Hospital 
District No. 1 as follows: 

 
To adopt the CHIS addendum which are the hospital activities related to improving community 

needs named in the hospital’s CHNA.  The annual CHIS addendum details these activities. 

 
ADOPTED and APPROVED by the Commissioners of Lewis County Hospital District No. 1 in 

an open public meeting thereof held in compliance with the requirements of the Open Public 

Meetings Act this 30th day of April 2025, the following commissioners being present and voting 

in favor of this resolution. 

 
___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Tom Herrin, Board Chair                             Wes McMahan, Secretary 
 
 
___________________________________  ____________________________________                
Van Anderson, Commissioner   Craig Coppock, Commissioner 
 
 
________________________________                
Chris Schumaker, Commissioner 
 

Pg 101 Board Packet



DOH 346-131 July 2022)

1

Reduction in Wait Times to 
new patients

In Person
Improve Access to Primary 

Care
East Lewis County Residents

Website, Quarterly Newsletter 
Circulations, Social Media, 

Newspaper Circulation of the 
District for Lewis County, Clinic 

Visits

2

Recuitment and retention of 
a quality healthcare 

workfroce
In Person

Realize a Healthier East 
Lewis County

Healthcare workers 

Website, Social Media, Online 
advertising on job websites (ie 
3Rnet), Hard copy advertising 

at Arbor Health locations

3

Complete school-based 
sports physicals 

In Person
Increase % of population 

reporting access to exercise

Secondary school aged 
residents of East Lewis 

county

Partnership with school district 
athletics department, Flyers 

disributed by school districts, 
Social Media

A. Type of Activity: B. Method in which the activity 
was delivered: 

C. How the activity relates to 
an identified community need 
in the community health needs 
assessment: 

D. The target population for 
the activity: 

E. Strategies to reach the target 
population:

Annual Community Health Improvement Services Addendum

Dec. 31, 2024

Lewis County District Hospital No. 1

600293024

4A-K) See sheet labeled "Instructions for Completion" for instructions to complete addendum. Insert additional lines as needed. 

Hospital Name:
License #:
Fiscal Yearend (Ex.6/30/2023):

 PAGE 1 of 2 Pg 102 Board Packet



1

Reduction in Wait Times to 
new patients

FT Salaried $390,000 Salary Position 222 None

2

Reduction in turnover as 
well as open positions to fill 

$417,500 Comp project/Conexus 302 None

3

Increase in sports physicals 
completed 

No additional costs to 
perform this task; 

completed by existing staff
NA 180 None

F. Identified outcome metrics: G. The cost to the hospital to 
provide the activity: 

H. The methodology used to 
calculate the hospital's costs: 

I. The total number of people 
served by the activity:

J. List entities that 
administered the community 
health improvement service, if 
other than the hospital: 

 PAGE 2 of 2 Pg 103 Board Packet



4

Promote access to flu 
vaccines

In Person
Improve Access to 

Preventitive Services
East Lewis County Residents

Drive through vaccine days in 
multiple locations throughout 
the hospital district, Website, 

Social Media, Newspaper 
Circulation of the District for 

Lewis County, Flyers posted in 
the community, Clinic Visits

5

Phreesia Virtual + In Person
Ensure consistent use of 
Best Practice Assessment 
Tools for Mental Health

East Lewis County Residents 
with internet access and/or 

cell phones

Clinic Visits, Patient Outreach 
by Clinical Staff

6

Patient Point Virtual + In Person
Realize a Healthier East 
Lewis County Through 

Educational Tools
East Lewis County Residents

Social Media, Word of Mouth 
from Clinic Staff, Clinic Visits

7

Family Resource Fair In Person
Increase % of patients 

compliant with Well Child 
Checks

East Lewis County Residents 
with families of young 

children

Website, Social Media, 
Newspaper Circulation of the 

District for Lewis County, Flyers 
posted in the community, 

Flyers sent home by School 
Districts

8

Additional bus stops up to 
Packwood

In Person
Improve Access to 

Preventitive Services
East Lewis County Residents

Website, Quarterly Newsletter 
Circulations, Social Media, 

Newspaper Circulation of the 
District for Lewis County

A. Type of Activity: B. Method in which the activity 
was delivered: 

C. How the activity relates to 
an identified community need 
in the community health needs 
assessment: 

D. The target population for 
the activity: 

E. Strategies to reach the target 
population:

 PAGE 1 of 2 Pg 104 Board Packet



4

Increase the number of flu 
vaccines provided

$12,175 Cost/Vaccine dose 615 None

5

Increase compliance rate for 
completition of PHQ-2 

$60,240 Service costs per contract 2580 None

6

No specific metrics pulled. 
Prompts educational 

engagement.
No cost to organization NA 10,319 None

7

Increase in pediatric patients 
seeking care in hospital 

district
$500 Venue rental, advertising 178 None

8

Increase in ridership on 
Brown Line

No cost to organization NA 4260 Lewis County Transit

F. Identified outcome metrics: G. The cost to the hospital to 
provide the activity: 

H. The methodology used to 
calculate the hospital's costs: 

I. The total number of people 
served by the activity:

J. List entities that 
administered the community 
health improvement service, if 
other than the hospital: 

 PAGE 2 of 2 Pg 105 Board Packet



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 

Pg 106 Board Packet



Pg 107 Board Packet



Pg 108 Board Packet



Pg 109 Board Packet



Pg 110 Board Packet



Pg 111 Board Packet



Pg 112 Board Packet



Pg 113 Board Packet



Pg 114 Board Packet



Pg 115 Board Packet



Pg 116 Board Packet



Pg 117 Board Packet



Pg 118 Board Packet



Pg 119 Board Packet



Pg 120 Board Packet



�����������	
�����������������

���������������������� ! "��#$%"!&'� ��(��&)*+,-.�,/012�,�20345�4.�6+77�28,.�9:�;4.12+7�20�8+63�<01�3-,5245+�=00>�=0?+-.,.5+�,.>1.>+-72,.>�80@�20�/+72�7+-?+�4.�<01-�-06+�,7�,�/0,->�;+;/+-A�B8+7+�C0?+-.,.5+�D>15,240.�780-27�,-+�>+74=.+>�20�8+63�/0,->�;+;/+-7�6+,-.20=+28+-A�E.>+-�9:�;4.12+7F�28+<�,-+�,.�+,7<�,>>4240.�20�,�G0,->�;++24.=�,=+.>,AD,58�780-2�501.27�,7�H�304.2�20@,->7�<01-�IJKL�M�LINKO�K+,628�P,-+�C0?+-.,.5+

�QRSTU�VWXYZ[\[]Y�̂_̀]\aW[�bcdefghijklmndocpqrstU�ùYv_\wx�yzZ{|�}~x����~���~�����SU���\[\�V\Z]{\�bkcmo��mi��mo�dolfm��lndocpq���r�tU��Y�����y���y�����VWXYZ[\[]Y�̂_̀]\aW[���WZ�v�������� ¡¢£�¤��¥¦§�̈©§§ª«©�¦§�¬®̈ �ª̄�®°±§¦²©�§©̄²©³�́�µ¶·�¢µµ̧ �ª̄²��¹º ̧ »�
¼½¾¿ÀÁÂÃÄÀÅ�¿ÅÂÆÇ�ÃÄ�À�ÄÀÈÈÃÉ�ÁÃÆÂ¿�ÀÄ½�ÊÃÉ�ÁÊËÌ�ÀÆÆÅÌ�ÁÃ�ÌÃ¾È�ÈÃÅË�ÀÇ�À�ÍÃÀÈ½�ÎËÎÍËÈÏ

Pg 121 Board Packet



�����������	
��	��
��������	�
���������������������	����	���������������	���������
�������	�������	�����
����� !"#$%&%'#�()*'&+,!%�-!$+&.��/����������������������	���	��������012�345678�9:;<=;>=1?@
������
��
A�B	�������C�
�
������������
��D�����E�F	���	������	��/����
���	��B	�������@������	
�B	�������C�
�
�������	�A��G��H��ID�������	�����
�������J�����
���	
��
���	����������	���	���
�J��A	���
�
����������	
����
��K�L58M<7;=�N<O;OP18�QRS�	
�T;U�QS���	��055O�V�S�MW��X�A�������	��L58M<7;=N<O;OP18�QRS��
����� !"#$%&%'#�()*'&+,!%�-!$+&.�L52�75�;PP188�345678�<O�741�Y5:16O;OP1�Z[\P;7<5O�]567;=?���̂	A�
����_!"#$%&%'#)*'&+,!%̀abc&d+&.#%+.ebd'!e����	��	������	����������	A�����������	��f�	�������	��fI������g�	
���������������	�����
�����	���	������g���	������h������g�f������	����������	�����f�i
����	�j�������������������	��
������
������K�����gf�	�������f�	����	�
����������	��������������	AA����	��	������	�
��L52�75�=5k�U5\6�M5<O7�;l716�2;7P4<Ok�;�34567�;8�;�m5;6[�<O�741�Y5:16O;OP1Z[\P;7<5O�]567;=?���̂	A�
����_!"#$%&%'#)*'&+,!%̀abc&d+&.#%+.ebd'!e����	��	������	����������	A�����������	��f�	�������	��fI������g�	
���������������	�����
�����	���	������g���	������h������g�f������	����������	�����f�n���		
���������������������K�����g�f�	�������f�	���	�
����������	��������������	AA����	��	������	�
��L52�75�P61;71�;�Y5:16O;OP1�Z[\P;7<5O�]567;=�;PP5\O7?����	��	�_!"#$%&%'#)*'&+,!%̀abc&d+&.#%+.ebd'!e�������g�f��A
��f��
�������������A��o��
���	�
���	��������A�����	������������	��I������g�p����������	�
�qr���	��
��������������
A�����
����	�
��	���	AA�
A��
�	��	������	�
��������������_!"#)*sabc&d!$_��
Pg 122 Board Packet


	ADPBB5A.tmp
	Medical staff privileging
	initial appointments-4
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges
	Arbor Health-Emergency Medicine Privileges
	Radiology Consulting Privileges

	Reappointments-2
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges
	Arbor Health-Sleep Medicine Privileges


	Appointment Request Form-04302025.pdf
	Medical staff privileging
	initial appointments-4
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges
	Arbor Health-Emergency Medicine Privileges
	Radiology Consulting Privileges

	Reappointments-2
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges
	Arbor Health-Sleep Medicine Privileges


	ADPF3CD.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Departments
	Slide Number 3
	Staffing
	What patients are saying
	Future planning
	Questions?

	2025 Laboratory Dept Spotlight Board Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Departments
	Slide Number 3
	Staffing
	What patients are saying
	Future planning
	Questions?

	Finance Docs.pdf
	Financial Statement Review032025
	Charts0325
	Balance Sheet YTD03312025
	P&L EBDITA Format03312025 (1)
	P&L with PY03312025
	P&L Forecast0325
	Cash-flow-statement032025
	Cash Flow Forecast 0325
	Expense by Line Item03312025
	Expenses by Department03312025
	Revenues by Dep03312025
	Revenues by Line Item3312025
	Statistics & Analysis03312025
	CheckWarrantsMarch25
	CostReport Status 032025
	BODP&L03312025

	Summary.pdf
	Financial Statement Review032025
	Charts0325
	Balance Sheet YTD03312025
	P&L EBDITA Format03312025 (1)
	P&L with PY03312025
	P&L Forecast0325
	Cash-flow-statement032025
	Cash Flow Forecast 0325
	Expense by Line Item03312025
	Expenses by Department03312025
	Revenues by Dep03312025
	Revenues by Line Item3312025
	Statistics & Analysis03312025
	CheckWarrantsMarch25
	CostReport Status 032025
	BODP&L03312025

	032625 Regular Board Meeting Minutes-DRAFT.pdf
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges
	Telestroke/Neurology Consulting Privileges
	Radiology Consulting Privileges

	043025 Lucidoc Report.pdf
	LucidocReport




